
City of Monticello, Iowa 
www.ci.monticello.ia.us 

Monticello City Council Meeting December 1, 2025 at 6:00 p.m.  
Monticello Renaissance Center, 220 E. 1st Street, Monticello, Iowa 

 
Mayor:  Wayne Peach  Staff:  
City Council:    City Administrator:       Russell Farnum 
At Large: Josh Brenneman City Clerk/Treas.:      Sally Hinrichsen 
At Large: Scott Brighton  Police Chief:       Britt Smith 
At Large: Jake Ellwood  Library Director:      Faith Brehm 
At Large: Dave Goedken  Public Works Dir.:      Nick Kahler 
At Large: Candy Langerman Water/Wastewater Sup.:  Jim Tjaden 
At Large: Mary Phelan  Park & Rec Director:      Jacob Oswald 
     Ambulance Director:      Lori Lynch 
     City Engineer:       Patrick Schwickerath  
 
- Call to Order – 6:00 P.M. 
- Pledge of Allegiance 
- Roll Call 
- Agenda Addition/Agenda Approval 
 
Open Forum: If you wish to address the City Council on subjects pertaining to 
today’s meeting agenda please wait until that item on the agenda is reached.  If you 
wish to address the City Council on an item not on the agenda, please approach the 
lectern and give your name and address for the public record before discussing your 
item. Individuals are normally limited to speaking for no more than three (3) minutes 
on a topic and the Open Forum is by rule limited to a total of twenty (20) minutes. 
 
Consent Agenda (These are routine items and will be enacted by one motion 
without separate discussion unless someone requests an item removed to be 
considered separately.) 
 
Approval of Council Mtg. Minutes   November    17, 2025 
Approval of August revised Treasurer Report August  2005 
Approval of Treasurer Report   September 2025 
Approval of Payroll     November    27, 2025 
Approval of Bill List 
Approval of Casey’s alcohol license   
 
 
Resolutions: 
 

1. Resolution Approving Park & Rec blanket Independent Program Contractor 
Agreement 

 
2. Resolution Scheduling Public Hearing on proposed rezoning of Lot 1 of 

Merrinoll 2nd Addition, located at the northwest corner of Carmel and El 
Camino Real from R-1 to R-2 for December 15, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 



 
3. Resolution Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-15, Parcel 2005-16, 

Parcel 2025-17 and Parcel 2025-18 
 

4. Resolution Approving the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-86, for Property 
located at 18294 Amber Road X44 

 
5. Resolution Approving partial payment of retainage to Roger Stephen, Re: 

Stephen Addition Trunk Sewer Project in the amount of $112,711.86 
 

 
Consideration and Possible Motions: 
 

6. Consideration and Possible Motion to approve Eli Moestchen proposed 
Eagle Scout Project for Park and Ride  

 
Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

7. Mayor 
8. City Engineer 
9. City Administrator 
10. Library Director 
11. Ambulance Director 
12. City Clerk 
13. Public Works Director 
14. Police Chief 
15. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
16. Park and Recreation Director  

 
Adjournment:  Pursuant to §21.4(2) of the Code of Iowa, the City has the right to 
amend this agenda up until 24 hours before the posted meeting time. 
 
Monticello City Council meetings are recorded, by attending and choosing to 
participate you give your consent to be recorded. If you prefer not to be recorded, 
you may submit comments in writing. 
 
 
The meeting will continue to be broadcast on Mediacom (Local Access Channel) and 
will be accessible via Zoom via the following link. 
 
City of Monticello is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: December 1, 2025 Council Meeting 
Time: Dec 1, 2025 06:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88122963233 
 
Meeting ID: 881 2296 3233 
 



--- 
 
One tap mobile 
+13052241968,,88122963233# US 
+13092053325,,88122963233# US 
 
Join instructions 
https://us02web.zoom.us/meetings/88122963233/invitations?signature=avwj7yIuu9Aei
mDHugct-uFz41-hCoXQGwEaricrsV0 
 
 

“This employer is an equal opportunity provider & employer” 
 



Regular Council Meeting  
November 17, 2025, 6:00 P.M. 
Community Media Center 
 
Mayor Wayne Peach called the meeting to order. Council present were:  Josh 
Brenneman, Candy Langerman, Mary Phelan, Jake Ellwood and Scott Brighton.   Also, 
present were City Administrator Russell Farnum, City Clerk Sally Hinrichsen, Library 
Director Faith Brehm, Water /Wastewater Superintendent Jim Tjaden, Park & Rec 
Director Jacob Oswald and Ambulance Director Lori Lynch.  Council member Dave 
Goedken was absent.  The public was invited to attend the meeting in person, or to 
participate in the meeting electronically via “Zoom Meetings” or “Facebook” and were 
encouraged to communicate from the chat or message.   
 
Brenneman moved to approve the agenda.  Brighton seconded, roll call was unanimous.   
 
Brighton moved to approve the consent agenda, Ellwood seconded.  Roll call was 
unanimous.  
 
Eli Moestchen presented his proposed Scout project, which focuses on redeveloping a 
walking trail through the Park and Ride area located at the south end of Monticello.  This 
parcel of land is currently owned by the Iowa Department of Transportation, but 
maintained by the City.  Moestchen’s project would include redeveloping a walking trail 
through clearing, grading, and defining a path; installing educational signage that 
highlights the natural environment; and adding plantings, benches and other amenities.  
He would like the City’s blessing before reaching out to the IDOT for their approval.  
Consensus of the Council was for Eli Moestchen to move forward with his proposed 
project and to place on next agenda for formal approval. 
 
Brighton moved to approve Resolution #2025-162  Approving FY 2024-2025 Annual 
Urban Renewal Report.  Ellwood seconded.  Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2025-163 Correcting Resolution 2025-90, 
Approving and Accepting the Voluntary Annexation of certain properties generally 
described as Lot 1 of Brad Stephen’s 4th Addition, including the adjacent right of way to 
the center of South Main Street (Business 151), adjoining the City of Monticello for at 
least fifty feet and not creating an island, as same is defined within Iowa Code §368.7(2).  
Ellwood seconded.  Roll call unanimous.   
 
Phelan moved to approve Resolution #2025-164 Approving Pay Request #18 to Bill 
Bruce Builders, Inc., Re: Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project in the 
amount of $505,421.59.  Ellwood seconded. Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Langerman moved to approve Resolution #2025-165 Adjusting funds appropriated to 
meet the City’s Obligation to Kardes Inc. per Development Agreement dated March 17, 
2014.  Brenneman seconded.  Roll call was unanimous. 
 
John Monk, with Outlaws Mobile Entertainment requested the usage of the Monticello 
Community Building for a Family Friendly Movie theatre night that will be open to all of 
the community for free.  Outlaw Entertainment wishes to provide a free Christmas family 
movie, with admission open to the public, at the Community Center on December 20th.  



Regular Council Meeting  
November 17, 2025 
 
This will be an all-inclusive activity, allowing access to those no matter their age or their 
financial limitations, to enjoy a nostalgic film in a warm and clean facility, with all of 
their friends and neighbors around.   Sponsorships from local businesses and families 
have been procured in the past to help cover to cost of licensing as well as supplies. 
Besides the indoor movie, the option of popcorn and hot cocoa will be available as long 
as supplies last to those who wish to partake.  Brenneman moved to allow Outlaw 
Entertainment free use of the Community Center for a free community movie event on 
December 20, 2025.  Ellwood seconded.  Roll call was unanimous. 
 
Farnum reported the implementation of the new software allows the capability to 
download reports into Excel.  
 
Farnum stated the airport farm lease bids have been sent out.  Anyone interested in 
receiving a bid form should contact the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
Farnum stated the Fire Board will be meeting on Wednesday to discuss the budget and 
turn out gear funding and invited Council to attend. 
 
Lynch reported the Volunteer EMTs purchased two Lucas 3s for the department for 
approxinately $40,000.  Lynch stated the department also received a grant from the Jones 
County Community Foundation in the amount of $4,000. 
 
Hinrichsen reported finalizing the training for the new software and the final two fiscal 
yearend reports. 
 
Tjaden reported the sewer jet needs some major repairs and the grant funding for the 
sewer plant will not be available to purchase a sewer jet.  Tjaden looked at options from 
two dealers.  These would have a stainless-steel tank.  Hinrichsen advised they would 
need to hold a public hearing if they decide to lease payments.  Council directed Tjaden 
to get more information and prices for the next meeting. 
 
Oswald reported on activities happening now and programs with registration ending 
soon.  He also reported many Christmas lights have been put up and the Seasons 
Greetings sign at the Aquatic Center was donated by the Rotary. 
 
Brehm reported on activities happening at the library.  She also advised that the mobile 
food truck will be at the Berndes Center.  She advised the food pantry at the Library is 
fully stocked also.   
 
Phelan moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:23 P.M.  
 
             
       Wayne Peach, Mayor   
 
        
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



























GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

AMBULANCE November 10 - 23, 2025
Chris Bell 583.33$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 501.75$           
Jamie Coleman 2,328.80                  -                   0.00 24.00 1,850.43          
Jordan Fullerton 1,229.90                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,049.28          
Quinn Hansen 2,108.25                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,597.35          
Mason Hanson 87.33                       -                   0.00 0.00 75.12               
Jayna Koffron 618.42                     -                   0.00 0.00 531.93             
Lori Lynch 3,457.51                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,336.16          
Coletta Matson 2,328.80                  -                   0.00 20.25 1,652.12          
Sky Monty 1,832.94                  33.74               0.00 0.00 1,354.17          
Kyle Pierson 257.90                     -                   0.00 0.00 221.83             
Hunter Schmidt 291.10                     -                   0.00 0.00 250.39             
Shirlee Scott 2,328.80                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,754.41          
Reggie Welter 1,492.46                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,158.81          

TOTAL AMBULANCE 18,945.54$              33.74$             0.00 44.25 14,333.75$      

CEMETERY November 10 - 23, 2025
Dan McDonald 2,209.60$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,654.19$        

TOTAL CEMETERY 2,209.60$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,654.19$        

CITY HALL November 10 - 23, 2025
Cheryl Clark 2,398.41$                -$                 10.50 27.75 1,689.04$        
Russ Farnum 3,961.54                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,637.49          
Sally Hinrichsen 3,326.38                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,235.63          
Nanci Tuel 2,803.07                  64.19               0.00 0.00 1,992.97          

TOTAL CITY HALL 12,489.40$              64.19$             10.50 27.75 8,555.13$        

COUNCIL / MAYOR
Josh Brenneman 300.00$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 276.78$           
Scott Brighton 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.78             
Jake Ellwood 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             
Dave Goedken 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 276.78             
Candy Langerman 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             
Wayne Peach 500.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 421.75             
Mary Phelan 300.00                     -                   0.00 0.00 277.05             

TOTAL COUNCIL / MAYOR 2,300.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,083.24$        

LIBRARY November 10 - 23, 2025
Faith Brehm 1,914.40$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,460.03$        
Molli Hunter 1,436.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,151.04          
Penny Schmit 1,724.80                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,156.32          

TOTAL LIBRARY 5,075.20$                -$                 0.00 0.00 3,767.39$        

MBC November 10 - 23, 2025
Milo Breitbach 1,750.00$                -$                 0.00 0.00 1,342.87$        
Kara Burrack 1,344.00                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,156.64          
Jacob Oswald 2,642.88                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,990.31          

TOTAL MBC 5,736.88$                -$                 0.00 0.00 4,489.82$        

POLICE November 10 - 23, 2025

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - NOVEMBER 27, 2025

Page 1 of 2



GROSS PAY OT PAY COMP HRS. COMP NET PAY
ACCRUED TOTAL

DEPARTMENT

PAYROLL - NOVEMBER 27, 2025

Dawn Graver 176.79$                   -$                 0.00 0.00 163.27$           
Erik Honda 2,969.46                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,216.01          
Jordan Koos 3,258.36                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,227.37          
Cole Millard 2,879.52                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,917.69          
Johnny Norwood 2,776.68                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,622.32          
Keanan Shannon 3,157.06                  -                   7.50 12.75 2,383.15          
Britt Smith 3,732.72                  -                   0.00 0.00 2,782.70          
Madonna Staner 1,925.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,435.34          
Brian Tate 3,728.22                  155.78             0.00 0.00 2,429.52          

TOTAL POLICE 24,604.41$              155.78$           7.50 12.75 17,177.37$      

ROAD USE November 10 - 23, 2025
Zeb Bowser 2,169.60$                -$                 0.00 12.00 1,574.80$        
Jacob Gravel 2,169.60                  -                   0.00 12.00 1,628.33          
Nick Kahler 2,687.49                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,960.74          
Jasper Scott 2,169.60                  -                   0.00 0.00 1,632.07          

TOTAL ROAD USE 9,196.29$                -$                 0.00 24.00 6,795.94$        

SEWER November 8 - 21, 2025
Jim Tjaden 3,071.44$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,265.25$        

TOTAL SEWER 3,071.44$                -$                 0.00 0.00 2,265.25$        

WATER November 8 - 21, 2025
Scott Hagen 2,389.60$                -$                 7.50 41.25 1,894.63$        
Josh Willms 2,229.60                  -                   11.25 64.50 1,523.36          

TOTAL WATER 4,619.20$                -$                 18.75 105.75 3,417.99$        

TOTAL - ALL DEPTS. 88,247.96$              253.71$           36.75 214.50 64,540.07$      

Page 2 of 2



















 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:   
The Parks and Recreation Department is requesting approval of a blanket Independent Program 
Contractor Agreement that staff can execute as new program opportunities arise.  This request follows 
recent interest in offering a music program for children ages 2–4.  Council previously approved a 
contractor agreement for the Growing Up Wild program—now rebranded as Nature Immersion—this 
past summer.  Formalizing a blanket agreement will streamline the process for future programs while 
maintaining appropriate oversight and eliminating the need to return to Council for each new contract. 
 
Background Information: 
Parks and Recreation continues to see increased interest in early childhood programming, including a 
proposed musical arts program for children ages 2–4.  Earlier in the year, staff worked with a 
contractor through a Council-approved agreement to deliver the Growing Up Wild (Nature Immersion) 
program.  As similar opportunities arise, it has become clear that a standardized, pre-approved 
contractor agreement would significantly improve administrative efficiency and allow staff to respond 
more quickly to community needs. 
 
To support this, staff is seeking council approval for a blanket Independent Program Contractor 
Agreement.  Once approved, this agreement would serve as the standard document used when 
contracting with individuals to deliver specialty programs.  Staff would be authorized to execute these 
contracts without returning to Council each time, provided the compensation remains under the $5,000 
spending authority granted to department heads. 
 
Under the proposed arrangement, the contractors would assume full responsibility for the design and 
delivery of the program.  This includes creating a developmentally appropriate, high-quality 
curriculum, preparing lesson plans, and leading all scheduled sessions.  The contractor will manage 

Agenda Item: # 1 
Agenda Date: 12/2/2025 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution Approving Park & Rec blanket Independent Program 
Contractor Agreement 
 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/21/2025 
Preparer: Jacob Oswald 
 



supplies, equipment, class preparation, and facility cleanup, ensuring a safe and positive learning 
environment for participants. 
 
The contractor will serve as the sole instructor and will be expected to provide necessary program 
materials unless otherwise agreed upon.  Collaboration and communication with Parks and Recreation 
staff will remain essential to ensure program alignment with department standards and community 
expectations. 
 
Registration revenue for contracted programs will be shared at the discretion of the Parks and 
Recreation Department, with the contractor receiving no less than 60% and no more than 80% of total 
revenue.  Should any future proposal deviate from this range, staff will return to Council for approval. 
    
 
Staff Recommendation:   
To approve the blanket Independent Program Contractor Agreement to streamline program 
development, reduce administrative delays, and expand recreational opportunities for families in the 
community. 



 City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #        
 

Approving Program Independent Contractor Agreement 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Monticello Parks and Recreation Department is seeking 
approval of a Program Independent Contractor Agreement that involves hiring an 
individual to create and oversee individual, specific and unique programs, focusing on 
environmental education and youth engagement, in order to expand Parks and Recreation 
program offerings, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department desires to hire a contractor(s) that 
will assume full responsibility for the program(s), including developing and delivering a 
high-quality curriculum, managing program logistics, and creating an engaging 
experience for participants.  The registration revenue for contracted programs will be 
shared at the discretion of the Parks and Recreation Department, with the contractor 
receiving no less than 60% and no more than 80% of total revenue.  The contractor is also 
responsible for the purchase of any equipment or supplies needed for the program unless 
otherwise agreed upon with the Parks and Recreation Department, and  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council finds it to be in the City’s best interest to approve the 
Program Independent Contractor Agreement that involves hiring individuals to oversee 
individual, specific and unique programs, focusing on environmental education and youth 
engagement To discuss strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or 
where litigation is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or 
disadvantage the position of the governmental body in that litigation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Program Independent Contractor Agreement and authorizes the 
Park and Recreation Department to hire contractor. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 1st day of December, 2025. 

 
__________________________________________ 

     Wayne Peach, Mayor 
 
Attest:      
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



 
Program Independent Contractor Agreement 

 
This agreement by and between Monticello Parks and Recreation (“City”) and 
_________________________________(“Contractor”). 
 

A. PURPOSE 
City and Contractor find it beneficial to contract with one another related to 
Classes/Programming to be offered by Contractor, using City facilities, by mutual 
agreement and understanding of the Parties as set forth herein. 

 
B. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR NOT EMPLOYEE 
Contractor understands that no withholdings for social security, medicare, federal or state 
income tax will be withheld from payments to Contractor by the City.  Contractor 
understands that annual payments to the contractor from the City , if said payments exceed 
$600 or IRS dictated amount (amount subject to change based on Internal Revenue Service 
guidance) will be reported to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) by way of the appropriate 
1099.  It is the contractor’s sole responsibility to satisfy any taxes due by the Contractor.  
City will make no payments to any employees or independent contractors of Contractor, 
such payments shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor. Contractor is not an employee 
of the City and no assistants, subcontractors, helpers or any other person in any way 
involved in Contractor's classes/programs will be a City Employee. 

 
 W-9/1099 Information on file  

 
C. HOLD HARMLESS 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City from and against any and 
all claims, demands, losses, damages, costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees and 
expenses at all levels) or death of or injury to any person or damage to any property 
whatsoever, including death or injury of Contractor or damage to Contractor property, 
arising out of the Contractor’s negligent acts or omissions, or caused by Contractor or its 
agents, employees or invitees, unless proximately caused by the negligence of City.  City 
shall not be liable to Contractor for any damage by or from any act or negligence of any 
co-tenant or other occupant of City property during the use of said City property for 
purposes of programming and services by Contractor, absent negligence related thereto by 
City.  Contractors agrees to pay for all damage to the City property, if damaged during the 
course of Contractor programming and services, as well as all damage to any other person 
or entity caused by misuse or neglect of City property, its apparatus or appurtenances or 
common areas, by Contractor, Contractor’s employees or independent contractors, 



program participants, agents and invitees.  The provisions of this Paragraph shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 

D. BACKGROUND CHECK 
Contractor authorizes the City to conduct,   and all previous employers to conduct or 
participate, in a Background Check and agrees to sign an appropriate release with the City 
to permit such background check. The background check may include an investigation into 
your personal background, work history, educational credentials and police record. so as 
to determine your fitness to perform as outlined herein. Decisions regarding your fitness 
will lie in the sole discretion of the City and shall not be subject to challenge by Contractor.  

 
E.  
City shall carry comprehensive general liability insurance in an amount not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence to provide protection against liability 
arising out of bodily injury and/or property damage that is the result of contractor’s 
negligent or intentional acts.  In the event the City of Monticello is required to defend 
Contractor, itself, or others associated with Contractor or City, based upon claims of 
negligence or intentional acts of Contractor or others performing services by or under 
Contractor, not including the City, City staff, City officials, or others not performing 
services or under contract with Contractor, where Contractor, or others under Contractor 
are found liable for damages to claimant, Contractor agrees to reimburse the City for any 
out of pocket deductible paid by City to defend the suit or to pay damages based upon the 
claim.. City will not provide Workers’ Compensation insurance for Contractor or any other 
person that may be entitled to Workers' Compensation coverage based upon said person’s 
relationship with Contractor. Contractor agrees to provide Workers' Compensation 
coverage if and when required. If Contractor fails to provide Workers' Compensation 
coverage to any person and it is later determined that said person was injured and entitled 
to coverage under Iowa Workers' Compensation laws and City is in any way found liable 
for expenses, damages, penalties, or other costs or expenses related thereto, Contractor 
agrees to fully indemnify and hold the City harmless, agreeing to reimburse the City for 
any and all such costs and expenses. 

 
 

F. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
1. Contractor agrees to work with the City Recreation Coordinator regarding class 

description, location, time of programming,  based on location availability, minimum 
number of registrants necessary to hold the Class, potential combining of classes to 
reach the required minimum number of registrants, and a price/fee structure for the 
programming. 

 
2. Contractor is strongly encouraged to participate in seasonal promotional events 

sponsored by City Parks and Recreation to promote and facilitate growth in 
Contractor’s programming and services, i.e. “Class or Classes”.. 

 
3. If any scheduled Class is offered for registration and fails to receive a previously agreed 

upon minimum number of registrations, the Class will be cancelled and any sums paid 



by registrants will be refunded in full.  If the same Class if offered for registration a 
second time, without receiving the minimum number of registrations, that Class will 
be cancelled, and not put out for registration in the future absent agreement of 
Contractor and City Recreation Coordinator that circumstances have changed which 
warrant a renewed attempt to garner the agreed upon minimum number of registrants. 

 
4. Monticello Parks and Recreation reserves the right to make changes concerning dates, 

times, location, etc., of any Class(es)  Monticello Parks and Recreation reserves the 
right to terminate this agreement if the required minimum enrollment is not achieved 
and maintained.    

 
5. Contractor will teach and supervise all scheduled classes. 

 
6. Contractor is responsible for preparing the curriculum, leading courses, setting up class 

space, preparing and, when applicable, returning supplies, equipment, and locking and 
unlocking facility. 

 
7. Contractor acknowledges its responsibility to arrive at the appropriate facility so as to 

be set up and ready for the scheduled Class/Program prior to the scheduled start time 
of the Class/Program. (Set-up and opening of the building (if applicable), gathering and 
placing equipment where and as needed.) 

 
8. Contractor will maintain accurate attendance records, and secure the facility and any 

equipment upon completion of Class/Program when appropriate. 
 
9. Contractor will report damage and/or injuries as soon as possible to the City Park and 

Recreation Director or City Recreation Supervisor and will take immediate steps to 
document any damage and/or injuries, to collect witness statements, audio or video 
statements where appropriate, and to otherwise record the event and collect steps to 
photograph any and ensure that the facility is left in the condition it was found.  

 
10. Contractor shall be solely responsible for  organizing, preparing, and 

instructing/teaching/presenting to registrants.  Contractor agrees to submit 
Class/Program curriculum and/or lesson plans, when appropriate, to City upon request.  

 
11. Contractor will provide all necessary supplies  unless otherwise agreed upon by City 

and Contractor. 
 

12. Any assistants, subcontractors, or others providing assistance to Contractor must 
execute a signed waiver agreeing to   a background check , and clear said background 
check in advance of any participation in the Class/Program.  

 
13. Contractor shall, generally speaking, fulfill any and all other duties and responsibilities 

pertaining to class/program instruction. 
 



14. Contractor will not allow anyone to participate in any class/programming until that 
person is fully enrolled in the Program.  

 
15. This contract may be terminated by the City at any time, with or without cause.  Upon 

termination, contractor shall only receive compensation proportionate to completed 
services rendered under said contract, which may require pro-ration.  

 
16. Contractor agrees to follow all policies, procedures, and laws applicable to City 

employees, including but not limited to harassment/sexual harassment policies, 
smoking policy and law.  While Contractor is NOT AN EMPLOYEE, a copy of the 
City employee handbook will be provided to Contractor who agrees to abide by all 
policies set forth therein but for those that can only be interpreted as being applicable 
to employees, and Contractor further agrees to ensure that all agents, assigns, and/or 
subcontractors of Contractors are also aware of their responsibility to follow said 
applicable policies, procedures, and laws. Smoking on City Property, including Parks, 
is strictly prohibited by Iowa law. 

 
17. Force Majeure: Neither party shall be held liable or responsible to the other party nor 

be deemed to have defaulted under or breached this Agreement for failure or delay in 
fulfilling or performing any term of this Agreement to the extent, and for so long as, 
such failure or delay is caused by or results from causes beyond the reasonable 
control of the affected party including but not limited to fire, floods, inclement 
weather, embargoes, war, acts of war (whether war be declared or not), acts of 
terrorism, insurrections, riots, civil unrest, strikes, lockouts or other labor 
disturbances, omissions or delays in acting by any governmental authority or the 
other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of such an occurrence, each 
party agrees to make a good faith effort to perform its obligations hereunder. 

 
18. City reserves the right to cancel or modify a program due to low registrations or for 

other unforeseen circumstances. If a program meeting(s) is missed due to reasons 
beyond the control of the City the program meeting may or may not be rescheduled. 
Reasonable attempts to reschedule will be made prior to cancellation. If a scheduled 
class/program is cancelled by City the Contractor will not receive compensation for 
that Class or series of classes and students will receive a refund unless the 
class/program is rescheduled. A request for cancellation of a Class prior to the 
commencement of any class, or classes if the class is set up as a series of classes, 
must be made to the City by contacting the Park and Recreation Director or 
Recreation Coordinator prior to the commencement of the Class or series of Classes. 
Requests for cancellation/withdrawal by the Contractor after usage of facility or 
Cancellation by the Contractor after any Class has commenced, or series of Classes 
have commenced, may or may not be honored, and may result in forfeiture of all 
contractual compensation payments for the agreed upon cancelled Class or series of 
Classes. 

 
 



 
G. Administrative Provisions. 
 
1. Each party represents to the other that the party has full power and authority to enter 

into this Agreement and that this Agreement is a binding Agreement duly authorized 
by the governing body of each party.  
 

2. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and may not be 
amended or assigned without the express permission of the other party.  

 
3. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and 

assigns of the parties. 
 
4. This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Iowa, and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Iowa. Exclusive venue in any legal proceeding related to or 
arising out of this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Jones County, 
Iowa. 

 
5. If any clause or provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid or unenforceable under 

present or future laws effective during the Term hereof, then it is the intention of the 
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and 
it is also the intention of both parties that in lieu of each clause or provision that is 
illegal, invalid or unenforceable, there shall be added as a part of this Agreement, a 
clause or provision as similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable clause 
or provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable.  The inadvertent 
failure to attach any exhibit (or schedule or addendum) described in this Agreement 
to the fully executed version hereof shall not render this Agreement invalid, 
incomplete, or ineffective in any way.  Upon notice from one party to the other, City 
and Contractor shall cooperate in good faith to provide any missing information 
regarding such missing exhibit, and shall both append the missing exhibit to their 
respective fully executed original of the Agreement. 

 
6. Unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement, any notice, demand, or request to be 

given under this Agreement (i) may be given by either party or its attorney or agent, 
(ii) shall be in writing, and (iii) shall be deemed to have been properly given (a) on 
the date delivered personally (including by courier), (b) one (1) business day 
following deposit with a nationally recognized overnight delivery service, (c) three 
(3) business days following deposit with the United States Postal Service (designated 
certified mail, return receipt requested, bearing adequate postage and addressed as 
designated below the signature lines of the Agreement), or (d) upon refusal of 
delivery by the recipient.  Contractor and City address for notices may be changed by 
ten (10) days prior written notice from time to time.  The foregoing notice provisions 
shall in no way prohibit notices from being given as provided by statute or in the 
Iowa Rules or Civil Procedure, as the same may be amended from time to time.  



 
7. No failure of either party to enforce any term hereof shall be deemed to be a waiver.  

The failure of either party to insist at any time upon the strict performance of any 
covenant or agreement contained herein or to exercise any option, right, power, or 
remedy contained in this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or a 
relinquishment thereof for the future.   

 
8. Each party to this Agreement has had an opportunity to review this Agreement with 

their own independent legal counsel prior to executing this Agreement.  Accordingly, 
each party to this Agreement executes this Agreement solely upon the reliance and 
advice of their own independent legal counsel and has not relied upon any 
conversation, writing, remark or silence of any other party or legal counsel acting on 
behalf of any other party hereto. 

 
9. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of 

Iowa.  Each of the parties hereto has independently had the opportunity to fully 
negotiate the terms hereof and modify the draftsmanship of this Agreement.  The 
terms of this Agreement shall be construed and interpreted without any presumption, 
inference or rule of law requiring the construction or interpretation of any provision 
of this Agreement against the interest of the party causing this Agreement to be 
drafted.   

 
H. Payment Information. 

 
Compensation for services shall be based on: 

 Per Hour/Match Rate: $ ______________________________ 

(MUST SUBMIT AN INVOICE/TIME SHEET FOR AMOUNT DUE) 

 Flat Fee  $ ______________________________    

 Percentage Split:       80 % Contractor    /    20 %  Monticello Parks and Recreation 

PAYMENT AMOUNT WILL BE BASED UPON ABOVE PERCENTAGE 
SPLIT OF NET REVENUE RECEIVED THROUGH PARTICIPANT 
REGISTRATIONS 
 

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE PAID IN FULL WITHIN 30 DAYS UPON COMPLETION 
OF SCHEDULED SERVICES/PROGRAMS. CONTRACTOR WILL RECEIVE A 1099 
AT THE END OF EACH CALENDAR YEAR IN COMPLIANCE WITH IRS 
REGULATIONS 
 
Contractor has read and understands all of the terms and provisions set forth within the  
above and foregoing Program Independent Contractor Agreement  and agrees to be bound 
by them   
 
 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the dates shown below, 
and same shall be effective as of the date of the last signature below. 
 

Independent Contractor Signature: ______________________________ Date: _____________ 

             Print: ______________________________ 

Adress and Phone Number: _______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Park and Recreation Director Signature: __________________________  Date: _____________ 

              Print: ______________________________ 

Adress and Phone Number: _______________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:   
 
Keith and Carol Hagen own Lot 1 of Merrinoll 2nd Addition, located at the northwest corner of Carmel 
and El Camino Real. They would like to rezone the property to R-2, Two-Family Residential, in order 
to build a duplex. The units will be set up so they could be sold separately down the road, but the 
Hagens will be holding onto them to rent out for the time being. 
 
Before rezoning, Council must set a public hearing on this request, for December 15, 2025. Thereafter 
Council may proceed with considering the rezoning issue. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approval to set the public hearing for the December 15 City Council meeting is recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 2 
Agenda Date: 12/01/2025 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Set Public Hearing on Rezoning Lot 1 Merrinoll 2nd Addition – R-1 
Single Family Residential to R-2 Two-Family Residential 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
Resolution 
Petition and Site Plan 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/25/2025 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
City of Monticello, Iowa 

 
RESOLUTION #  

 
Scheduling Public Hearing on proposed rezoning of Lot 1 of Merrinoll 

 2nd Addition, located at the northwest corner of Carmel and  
El Camino Real from R-1 to R-2 for December 15, 2025 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
 

WHEREAS, a request has been made to rezone Lot 1 of Merrinoll 2nd Addition, 
located at the northwest corner of Carmel and El Camino Real from R-1 to R-2, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that a public hearing must be held pursuant to the 
Monticello Code of Ordinances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, 
Iowa does hereby schedule Public Hearing on the proposed re-zoning of the 
property identified above for the 15th day of December, 2025 at 6:00 p.m., at the 
Mary Lovell LeVan Renaissance Center, with appropriate notice to be published 
in advance within the Monticello Express. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal 
of the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed 
hereto.  Done this 1st day of December, 2025. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 
 

 
 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE  
 
 

Notice Is Hereby Given that a Public Hearing will be held on the 15th day of December, 2025, at 
6:00 o’clock p.m., at the Mary Lovell LeVan Monticello Renaissance Center, Community Media 
Center, 220 East First Street, on the Proposed Amendment to the Zoning Map of the City of 
Monticello, changing the zoning on the following property from “R-1” Single Family Residential 
to “R-2” Two-Family Residential District: Lot 1 of Merrinoll Park 2nd Addition, and located at 
the northwest corner of Carmel Road and El Camino Real. 

The proposed amendment would allow construction of two-unit attached dwelling at this 
location. At said hearing any interested person may file written objections or comments and may 
be heard orally with respect to the subject matters of the hearing. 

Sally Hinrichsen 
City Clerk 

 









 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  Steve Holmes owns several lots in the area bounded by Chestnut Street on the west and 
Laude Avenue on the north, adjacent to the 6th Street ditch. There is one other homeowner on this 
block as well (Chally). The requested plat would “correct” the platted lot lines to better reflect what 
has actually been built on the lots over the years, and reflect additional land that was purchased by 
Chally decades ago. 
 
 
Background Information:   
 
As characteristic of many older neighborhoods in Monticello, there are actually buildings that trespass 
onto neighboring properties, odd angles on many lot lines, property purchases among neighbors that 
were not properly documented, and similar nonconformities. This plat would correct those in this area. 
 
This block is shown in Beacon, below: 
 

Agenda Item: # 3 
Agenda Date: 12/01/2025 

Agenda Items Description:   Resolution Approving Plat of Parcels 2025-15 through 2025-18 (Holmes) 

Type of Action Requested:  Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

Locator Map/ Plat and Legal Descriptions 

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/25/2025 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 
 
 
The proposed plat will correct these nonconformities and improve setbacks, clarify lot lines, and 
properly document lot line changes that have occurred over the years. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
Planning and Zoning reviewed this at their regular meeting of November 25, 2025, and recommended 
approval.  



 
 

City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION #      
 

Approving Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-15, Parcel 2005-16,  
Parcel 2025-17 and Parcel 2025-18 

 
WHEREAS,  The Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-15, Parcel 2005-16, Parcel 2025-17 and Parcel 
2025-18 has been presented to the City Council for approval, same being located within the 
City Limits of the City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Plat of Survey for property owned by Steve Holmes in the area 
bounded by Chestnut Street on the west and Laude Avenue on the north, adjacent to the 
6th Street ditch. There is one other homeowner on this block as well (Chally). The 
requested plat would “correct” the platted lot lines to better reflect what has actually 
been built on the lots over the years, and reflect additional land that was purchased by 
Chally decades ago, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey and 
recommends that it be approved, and 
 
WHEREAS,  The City Council finds that the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2020-106 should be 
approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa does 
hereby approve the Plat of Survey to 2025-15, Parcel 2005-16, Parcel 2025-17 and Parcel 
2025-18. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of the 
City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  Done 
this 1st day of December, 2025. 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



22

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

PARCEL 2022-57
INST. #2022-3563

PARCEL 2022-58
INST. #2022-3563

PARCEL 2022-59
INST. #2022-3563

BLOCK 3

B
O

O
K

 1
2

7
,  
P

A
G

E
 5

7

LOT 91

PARCEL B
BOOK 309, PAGE 157

PARCEL C
BOOK 309, PAGE 157

LOT 70

LOT 71

RIGHT OF WAY CENTERLINE OF LAUD AVENUE

0.11 ACRES 0.22 ACRES 0.27 ACRES

S 1/2 - LOTS 13, 14, 15 & 16,
EXCEPT CHESTNUT ST.

SEE BOUNDARY AGREEMENT
INSTRUMENT #2001-1166

0.04 ACRES

Q:\Civil3D_Survey\Jones County\T86N_R3W Lovell\T86N R3W Lovell IaRCS 2022.dwg

PART OF LOT 13, LOT 14 THROUGH LOT 22 IN BLOCK 3 OF WELCH ADDITION IN THE NE 1/4 -SE 1/4, SEC. 21, T86N, R3W

OF THE FIFTH P.M., CITY OF MONTICELLO, JONES COUNTY, IOWA

LEGEND
SURVEYED ON:

PROPRIETORS:

PROJECT NO.

SCALE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET     OF 

RANDALL L. RATTENBORG P.L.S.          LIC. #17939                              DATE MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31,

GPS BOX:

SURVEY REQUESTED BY:

SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:

Civil Engineering  I  Land Surveying
105 W. Main Street  Manchester, Iowa  52057    burringtongroup.com

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED AND THE RELATED SURVEY WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME OR UNDER
MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA.

RANDALL L.
RATTENBORG

17939

C
O

U
N

T
Y

:

S
E

C
T

IO
N

  
  

  
, 
T

  
  

  
 N

, 
R

A
L

IQ
U

O
T

 P
A

R
T

:

C
IT

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

:

B
L

O
C

K
:

L
O

T
S

:

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
O

R
:

R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
E

D
 B

Y
: 

 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

:

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
: 

B
U

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N
, 
G

R
O

U
P

, I
N

C
.

1
0

5
 W

. 
M

A
IN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

, 
M

A
N

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
, I

A
  5

2
0

5
7

IN
F

O
@

B
U

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N
G

R
O

U
P

.C
O

M
   

  
5

6
3

-9
2

7
-2

4
3

4

J
O

N
E

S

2
1

8
6

3
 W

N
E

 1
/4

 -
 S

W
 1

/4

M
O

N
T

IC
E

L
L

O

P
A

R
C

E
L

S
 2

0
2

5
-1

5
, 

2
0

2
5

-1
6

, 
2

0
2

5
-1

7
, 

2
0

2
5

-1
8

S
T

E
V

E
N

 W
. 

H
O

L
M

E
S

M
IC

H
E

L
E

 M
. 

B
A

Y
N

E
, 

S
T

E
V

E
N

 W
. 
H

O
L
M

E
S

R
A

N
D

A
L

L
 L

. 
R

A
T

T
E

N
B

O
R

G

2025

1 2

LOVELL

DDK

RLR

1/27/2025

1"= 30'

24-156

MICHELE M. BAYNE, STEVEN W. HOLMES

1/9/2025

SHEET 1 & 2 SCALE: 1" = 30'

30 0 30

POINT OF BEGINNING
PARCEL 2025-15

NW CORNER - LOT 14

POINT OF BEGINNING
PARCEL 2025-18

POINT OF BEGINNING
PARCEL 2025-16

POINT OF BEGINNING
PARCEL 2025-17

2" PIPE



2
2

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
2

0
2

1

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
2

-5
7

IN
S

T
. #

2
0

2
2

-3
5

6
3

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
2

-5
8

IN
S

T
.

#
2

0
2

2
-3

5
6

3

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
2

-5
9

IN
S

T
.

#
2

0
2

2
-3

5
6

3

B
L

O
C

K
 3

BOOK 127, PAGE 57

L
O

T
 9

1

P
A

R
C

E
L

 B
B

O
O

K
 3

0
9

, P
A

G
E

 15
7

P
A

R
C

E
L

 C
B

O
O

K
 3

0
9

, P
A

G
E

 15
7

L
O

T
 7

0

L
O

T
 7

1

R
IG

H
T

 O
F
 W

A
Y

 C
E

N
T

E
R

L
IN

E
 O

F
 L

A
U

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

0
.1 1 A

C
R

E
S

0
.2

2
 A

C
R

E
S

0
.2

7
 A

C
R

E
S

S
 1/2

 - L
O

T
S

 13
, 14

, 15
 &

 16
,

E
X

C
E

P
T

 C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

 S
T

.

S
E

E
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y
 A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
 #

2
0

0
1-116

6

0
.0

4
 A

C
R

E
S

Q
:\C

ivil3
D

_
S

u
rv

e
y

\J
o

n
e

s C
o

u
n

ty
\T

8
6

N
_

R
3

W
 L

o
v
e

ll\T
8

6
N

 R
3

W
 L

o
v
e

ll Ia
R

C
S

 2
0

2
2

.d
w

g

P
A

R
T

 O
F

 L
O

T
 13

, L
O

T
 14

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 L

O
T

 2
2

 IN
 B

L
O

C
K

 3
 O

F
 W

E
L

C
H

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 IN
 T

H
E

 N
E

 1/4
 -S

E
 1/4

, S
E

C
. 2

1, T
8

6
N

, R
3

W

O
F

 T
H

E
 F

IF
T

H
 P

.M
., C

IT
Y

 O
F

 M
O

N
T

IC
E

L
L

O
, J

O
N

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, IO
W

A

L
E

G
E

N
D

S
U

R
V

E
Y

E
D

 O
N

:

P
R

O
P

R
IE

T
O

R
S

:

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 N

O
.

S
C

A
L

E
:

D
A

T
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
H

E
E

T
     O

F
 

R
A

N
D

A
L

L
 L

. R
A

T
T

E
N

B
O

R
G

 P
.L

.S
.          L

IC
. #

17
9

3
9

                              D
A

T
E

M
Y

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
 D

A
T

E
 IS

 D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 3
1,

G
P

S
 B

O
X

:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 R
E

Q
U

E
S

T
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
H

E
E

T
S

 C
O

V
E

R
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
IS

 S
E

A
L
:

C
iv

il E
n

g
in

e
e

rin
g

  I  L
a

n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
in

g
1
0

5
 W

. M
a

in
 S

tre
e

t  M
a

n
c

h
e

ste
r, Io

w
a

  5
2

0
5

7
    b

u
rrin

g
to

n
g

ro
u

p
.c

o
m

I H
E

R
E

B
Y

 C
E

R
T

IF
Y

 T
H

A
T

 T
H

IS
 L

A
N

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
IN

G
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 W

A
S

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 A
N

D
 T

H
E

 R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
 W

O
R

K
 W

A
S

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 B

Y
 M

E
 O

R
 U

N
D

E
R

M
Y

 D
IR

E
C

T
 P

E
R

S
O

N
A

L
 S

U
P

E
R

V
IS

IO
N

 A
N

D
 T

H
A

T
 I A

M
 A

 D
U

L
Y

 L
IC

E
N

S
E

D
 P

R
O

F
E

S
S

IO
N

A
L

 L
A

N
D

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

O
R

 U
N

D
E

R
 T

H
E

 L
A

W
S

 O
F

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

T
E

 O
F

 IO
W

A
.

R
A

N
D

A
L
L
 L

.
R

A
T

T
E

N
B

O
R

G
1

7
9

3
9

COUNTY:

SECTION      , T       N, R

ALIQUOT PART:

CITY:

SURVEY:

BLOCK: LOTS:

PROPRIETOR:

REQUESTED BY:  

SURVEYOR:

COMPANY: BURRINGTON, GROUP, INC.
105 W. MAIN STREET, MANCHESTER, IA  52057
INFO@BURRINGTONGROUP.COM     563-927-2434

JONES

21 86 3 W

NE 1/4 - SW 1/4

MONTICELLO

PARCELS 2025-15, 2025-16, 2025-17, 2025-18

STEVEN W. HOLMES

MICHELE M. BAYNE, STEVEN W. HOLMES

RANDALL L. RATTENBORG

2
0

2
5

1
2

L
O

V
E

L
L

D
D

K

R
L

R

1
/2

7
/2

0
2

5

1
"=

 3
0

' 2
4

-15
6

M
IC

H
E

L
E

 M
. B

A
Y

N
E

, S
T

E
V

E
N

 W
. H

O
L

M
E

S

1
/9

/2
0

2
5

S
H

E
E

T
 1 &

 2
S

C
A

L
E

: 1" =
 3

0
'

3
0

0
3

0

P
O

IN
T

 O
F
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
5

-15
N

W
 C

O
R

N
E

R
 - L

O
T

 14

P
O

IN
T

 O
F
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
5

-18

P
O

IN
T

 O
F
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
5

-16

P
O

IN
T

 O
F
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

P
A

R
C

E
L

 2
0

2
5

-172
" P

IP
E



C
iv

il E
n

g
in

e
e

rin
g

  I  L
a

n
d

 S
u

rve
yin

g
10

5
 W

. M
a

in
 S

tre
e

t  M
a

n
c

h
e

ste
r, Io

w
a

  5
2

0
5

7
          P

h
o

n
e

 5
6

3
-9

2
7

-2
4

3
4

          b
u

rrin
g

to
n

g
ro

u
p

.c
o

m

P
A

R
T

 O
F

 L
O

T
 13

, L
O

T
 14

 T
H

R
O

U
G

H
 L

O
T

 2
2

 IN
 B

L
O

C
K

 3
 O

F
 W

E
L

C
H

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

 IN
 T

H
E

 N
E

 1/4
 -S

E
 1/4

, S
E

C
. 2

1, T
8

6
N

, R
3

W

O
F

 T
H

E
 F

IF
T

H
 P

.M
., C

IT
Y

 O
F

 M
O

N
T

IC
E

L
L

O
, J

O
N

E
S

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, IO
W

A



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Summary:  The attached is a proposed parcel plat for Parcel 2025-86, for Sue and Andy Ballou. They 
wish to build a new home on their farm on Amber Road, just north of their business office for 
Recycled Products Co.  
 
The proposed subdivision will create one new 2-acre building lot, which would be compatible with the 
surrounding development.  The property is a few hundred feet south of the City Limits and the City 
cannot (at this time) feasibly extend City services to this new lot. The new lot will not significantly 
impact the future growth or development of the City.  
 
Because this land falls within 2 miles of the City, it is within the City’s extraterritorial review and the 
City needs to approve this plat before the County will approve it. The City has no desire or ability to 
extend City services to this land at this time or in the longer-term future.  
 
 
Recommendation:  P&Z reviewed this request at their regular meeting of November 25 and 
recommended approval.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item: # 4 
Agenda Date: 12/01/2025 
 

Agenda Items Description:  Resolution Approving Final Plat of Parcel 2025-86 (Ballou) 

Type of Action Requested: Resolution 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 
Plat and locator maps 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

 
  
  
 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/25/2025 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



 City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION # 
 

Approving the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-86, for  
Property located at 18294 Amber Road X44 

 
 

WHEREAS, There has been filed with the City Clerk for approval of Parcel 2025-86, 
creating 2-acre building lot, which would be compatible with the surrounding 
development, same being located within the two-mile jurisdiction of the City limits of the 
City of Monticello, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the Plat of Survey to 
Parcel 2025-86 and recommended approval, and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council concurs that the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-86 should 
be approved. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the Plat of Survey to Parcel 2025-86, same being located within the 
two-mile jurisdiction of the City limits of the City of Monticello. 
  
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal of 
the City of Monticello, Iowa to be affixed hereto.  
Done this 1st day of December, 2025. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 









 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Synopsis:  The initial segment of the Stephen Sewer project was paid for with 30% retainage in order 
to assure proper testing, property restoration and other completion details. 
 
That pay application included $450,847.44 of completed work. The retainage was $135,254.23 (30%). 
The testing and property restoration have been completed satisfactorily, except for some minor debris 
(gravel and dirt) in the pipes, which the initial jetting did not get flushed down. 
 
Pirc Tobin is planning to have the entire sewer jetted again and televised, once the whole sewer is 
completed. This will eliminate any concerns about the debris.   
 
Because there is that debris, Snyder Engineering recommends still retaining 5% of the first segment. 
Five percent retainage on the $450,847.44 is $22,542.37. The difference of the two quantities is 
$112,721.86, which is the amount requested to be paid. 
  
Staff Recommendation:   
 
Approval of Pay Request #4 is recommended. 

Agenda Item: # 5 
Agenda Date: 12/01/2025 

Agenda Items Description:   Approve Pay Request #4 for Stephen Sewer 
 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Report; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
  
 

 Resolution 

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 11/25/2025 
Preparer: Russell Farnum 
 



City of Monticello, Iowa 
 

RESOLUTION # 
 

Approving partial payment of retainage to Roger Stephen, Re: Stephen 
 Addition Trunk Sewer Project in the amount of $112,711.86 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Monticello, Iowa is an incorporated city within Jones County, 
Iowa; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council entered into an agreement (the “Development Agreement”) with 
Roger Strephen  (the “Developer”) with respect to the construction of a regional sanitary 
sewer improvement, from Kitty Creek extending westerly to South Main Street, in the City 
of Monticello, County of Jones, State of Iowa, with Resolution #2025-99 dated July 21, 
2025 and 

WHEREAS, the Development Agreement would provide financial incentives to the 
Developer in the form of payments for a portion of the public infrastructure necessary to 
construct the subdivision, and 

WHEREAS, Roger Stephen has been paid for their work for the section from Pay 
Request #1, with the exception of the retainage of 30% that has been held by the City, 
and that the City Engineer has recommended approval of said partial retainage payment 
request, as the work for this section has been completed and tested, same reflecting the 
maintenance of a 5% retainer in the cumulative amount of $22,42.37, and  
 
WHEREAS, The Council finds that the partial retainage should be paid at this time.  
With the remaining 5% retainage to be held pending the receipt of a lien waivers, and 
other paperwork was filed with Snyder & Associates, and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Monticello, Iowa 
does hereby approve the partial retainage pay request from Pay Request #1 from Roger 
Stephen in the amount of $112,711.86, same reflecting the maintenance of a 5% retainer 
for Pay Request #1 in the amount of $22,542.37 and a 30% retainer for Pay Request #2 & 
3 in the amount of $178,824.09, with the cumulative amount of $201,366.46. 

 
IN THE TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto 
subscribed my name and caused the Great Seal for the City of 
Monticello, Iowa to be affixed.  Done this 1st day of  December 
2025. 
____________________________ 
Wayne Peach, Mayor   

 
Attest: 
_______________________________ 
Sally Hinrichsen, City Clerk/Treasurer 



900 BELL DRIVE SW | CEDAR RAPIDS, IA 52404-5070
P: 319-362-9394 l SNYDER-ASSOCIATES.COM 

v:\projects\2024\124.0022.08\projects\stephen's_addn\construction\ltronly_2025-11-21_payapp#4_retainage.docx 

November 21, 2025

Mayor and City Council 

City of Monticello 

200 East 1st Street 

Monticello, IA 52310 

RE: STEPHEN SEWER 

PAY REQUEST #4 - RETAINAGE 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Enclosed for your review and approval is Pay Request #4 for work completed on the Stephen 

Sewer project.  

Payment for a portion of the retainage associated with improvements completed as part of Pay 

Request #1, which included earthwork, dewatering, sanitary sewer installation, and stored 

materials. Testing of the manhole and sewer installed with Pay Request #1 has been completed, 

with the exception of final televising and cleaning (if necessary) of the sanitary sewer main. Said 

televising and cleaning will be completed for all of the sewer following final installation. 

With the testing items completed, as noted above, we recommend reducing the retainage associated 

with the work completed for Pay Request #1 from 30% down to 5%. We, therefore, recommend 

approval of Pay Request #4 in the amount of $112,711.86 to Roger Stephen.   

Feel free to contact me to discuss this further if needed.   Thank you.

Respectfully, 

SNYDER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

Patrick Schwickerath, P.E. 

Project Engineer 

Enclosure: Pay Request #4 

Cc: Russ Farnum, City of Monticello 

Roger Stephen 



PROJECT: STEPHEN SEWER S&A  PROJECT NO.: 124.0022.08

OWNER: CITY OF MONTICELLO

DEVELOPER: ROGER STEPHEN

ADDRESS: 355 BRADLEY DRIVE

MONTICELLO, IA 52310

DATE: November 17, 2025 PAYMENT PERIOD: October 10, 2025

to November 7, 2025

1. CONTRACT   SUMMARY:

Original Contract Amount: 1,316,569.50$  CONTRACT PERIOD:  TOTAL CALENDAR DAYS

Original Contract Date: 

Maximum City Reimburement Amount: 1,270,000.00$  

Original Contract Completion Date: 

Net Change by Change Order: (56,126.56)$   Late Start Date

Contract Amount to Date: 1,260,442.94$  Added by Change Order:  

2. WORK  SUMMARY: Current Contract Completion Date

Total Work Performed to Date: 1,046,927.74$  

Retainage PR1:     30% $22,542.37
Retainage PR2 &

PR3:      30% $178,824.09

Total Earned Less Retainage: 845,561.28$     

Less Previous Applications for Payment: 732,849.42$     

AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION: 112,711.86$     

3. DEVELOPER'S   CERTIFICATION:

The undersigned DEVELOPER certifies that:

(1) all previous progress payments received from OWNER on account of Work done under the contract referred to above have been

applied to discharge in full all obligations of DEVELOPER incurred in connection with the Work covered by prior Applications for

Payment; and

(2) title to all materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by the application for Payment are free

and clear of all liens, claims, security interests, and encumbrances

DEVELOPER

By DATE:

Roger Stephen

4. ENGINEER'S   APPROVAL:

Payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended:

Snyder & Associates, Inc.
ENGINEER

By DATE:

5. OWNER'S   APPROVAL

OWNER

By DATE:

Wayne Peach, Mayor

APPLICATION FOR PARTIAL PAYMENT NO. 4

City of Monticello

Roger Stephen

V:\Projects\2024\124.0022.08\Projects\Stephen's_Addn\Construction\PayApp_2025-11-21_PR4.xlsx

Patrick Schwickerath, P.E.



 
 

Communication Page 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reports / Potential Actions: 
 

7.   Mayor 
8.  City Engineer 
9.  City Administrator 
10. Library Director 
11. Ambulance Director 
12. City Clerk 
13. Public Works Director 
14. Police Chief 
15. Water/Wastewater Superintendent 
16. Park and Recreation Director  

 

Agenda Item: # 7-16     
Agenda Date: 12/1/2025 
 

Agenda Items Description:   Reports 

Type of Action Requested:  Motion; Resolution; Ordinance; Reports; Public Hearing; Closed Session 

Attachments & Enclosures: 
 

Fiscal Impact: 
Budget Line Item:  
Budget Summary: 
Expenditure: 
Revenue:  

  
  
   
 

  

  

 

 

City Council Meeting 
Prep. Date: 1126/2025 
Preparer: Sally Hinrichsen 
 


	A 01 a 12.1.2025 Council agenda
	A 02 a 11.17.2025 Council minutes
	A 03 a Aug & Sept Treasurer reports
	A 04 a November 27 2025 Payroll
	Sheet1

	A 06 a Claims Report
	D 01 a Communication Page - Independent Program Contract
	Background Information:
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 1
	Agenda Date: 12/2/2025

	D 01 b 2025-         Park & Re Independent Program contract
	D 01 c 250115 Individual Program Contractor Agreement
	Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, damages, costs and expenses (including attorneys' fees and expenses at all levels) or death of or injury to any person or damage to any...

	D 02 a Communication Page Hagen Rezone Set Public Hearing
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 2
	Agenda Date: 12/01/2025

	D 02 b 2025-      ReZoning(Hagen.Property.Set.PH)
	D 02 c Public.Hearing.Notice.Rezone.Lot 1 Merrinoll 2nd Add
	D 02 e Hagen Rezone Petition
	D 02 f Hagen Rezone Letter and SIte Plan (002)
	D 03 a Communication Page Holmes Plat
	Background Information:
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 3
	Agenda Date: 12/01/2025

	D 03 b 2025-       Resolution(Plat.Survey.2025.15, 16, 17 & 18. Steve Holmes)
	D 03 c Holmes P1 Aerial
	D 03 d Holmes P1
	D 03 e Holmes P2
	D 04 a Communication Page Final Plat Ballou
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 4
	Agenda Date: 12/01/2025

	D 04 b 2025-      Ballou. Plat (parcel 2025-86)
	D 04 c ballou andy location map 2025
	D 04 d ballou andy plat and legal 2025
	D 05 a Communication Page Pay Request #4 Stephens Sewer
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 5
	Agenda Date: 12/01/2025

	D 05 b 2025-       Roger Stephen trunk sewer(Partial reatianage Pay.Request.4)
	RESOLUTION #
	Approving partial payment of retainage to Roger Stephen, Re: Stephen
	Addition Trunk Sewer Project in the amount of $112,711.86

	D 5 c Ltr_2025-11-21_PayApp#4_Retainage
	H 01 a Communication Reports
	City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item: # 7-16
	Agenda Date: 12/1/2025




